




St. Paul’s Vestry      February 27, 2022 
 

 

1. Opening Prayers  

2. Election of Vestry Clerk: Melanie Foord 

3. Presentation of the Auditor’s Report.  (Pg-31) 

4. Acceptance of the audited financial statements. 

5. Motion that Vestry retains Dawn Flett & Associates Chartered Accountants to maintain 

St.-Paul’s-on-the-Hill’s books for the 2023 audit, and to present the Auditor’s Report at 

Vestry on February 26, 2023.  

6. A year in review by Canon Stephanie Douglas-Bowman, Incumbent 

7. Acceptance of the Minutes of Vestry, February 28, 2021. (Pg 1) 

8. Acceptance of the Minutes of Financial Vestry, April 11, 2021. (Pg 4) 

9. Acceptance of all other Reports as printed in this Vestry Report. 

10. Motions concerning the Advisory Board and Executive Committee (Pg 7). 

11. Appointments by Rector: Rector’s Warden; Production Director, Receiptable Secretary, 

Food Bank Manager. 

12. Nominations and Elections of: The People’s Warden, Deputy Wardens, Parochial 

Tribunal, Scrutineers, Envelope Secretary for St. Paul’s, Synod Delegates (3) and 

Alternate Delegates to Synod (2).  (Pg 30) 

13. Presentation of Budget for 2022. 

a. Church Budget - Kehinde Ladipo (Pg 46) 

b. Food Bank & Food Bank Budget (Pg 58) 

14. In Appreciation of Pam Johnstone and Ivan Hunte. 

15. New Business and Questions. 

16. Announcement of 2023 Vestry Meeting: February 26, 2023 at 12:30 pm. 

17. Motion to Adjourn. 

18. Closing Prayers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The College of Bishops Pastoral Letter to Vestries, 2022 
          to be read or circulated on the Sunday of the parish’s annual vestry meeting 

 
 
To the clergy, churchwardens, and parishioners of the Diocese of 
Toronto, 
 
Beloved Siblings in Christ, 
 
May the grace and peace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with you all. 

As you gather today for the annual vestry meeting, we as your bishops wanted to write to you united 

as a College, to assure you of our prayers, gratitude and love for you in the face of the challenges 

facing our Church at this time. We want to encourage you and to assure you of our support, as we 

look back on the past year and anticipate the one that lies before us. 

Our life together continues to be shaped by a little virus called COVID-19. Most of us had hoped 

that we would be back to our pre-pandemic ways by now. Yet we seem to be entering into the third 

year of this pandemic, and we are in the midst of an incredible fifth wave. We have learned to adapt, 

shift, change, open, close, move online, Zoom, sing through a mask, and much more. None of us 

could have imagined that we were capable of doing all of this, for as long as we have, when we 

closed our church buildings for the first time in March 2020. 

To say that we are tired – worn out, fed up – would be an understatement. We wonder: how much 
longer? Unfortunately, while we may be finished with this pandemic, this pandemic is not quite 
finished with us. 
 

“Be strong and courageous; do not be frightened or dismayed, for the Lord your God is with you wherever you go.” 

(Joshua 1:9) 

Just as the Lord commissioned Joshua to take on leadership from Moses and to lead the people 

forward into the land that had been promised, so God commissions us to be faithful even in the 

midst of this anxiety. As with Joshua, God promises to be with us wherever we go. And God’s 

faithfulness to Israel on the cusp of new life in a new land, renews our hope for our own 

deliverance. 

In the crucible of this pandemic, there are signs of God’s light and life all around us, and we have 

been so moved by the ways that strength and courage have been shown by the people of our 

Diocese this year. The movement to virtual worship, the leaving behind of our buildings for a time, 

the reliance on community that has been formed and nurtured online – these are all signs of the 

resilience born of our faith in Jesus Christ. They are reminders that the Lord our God is with us 

wherever we go – even through this season of deep challenge – and that God has not abandoned us. 

God’s accompaniment has been made known in other ways too. In the midst of this pandemic, we 

as a Church have been coming to terms with issues of systemic racism and bias. The rollout of anti-

bias and anti-racism training in 2021 – and the participation of almost all our active clergy – is a sign 

of God’s transformative work in us as a Church. We still have much to do to combat racism and 

bias, but these steps bring us closer to the Church we are called to be. The ABAR workshops will be 



rolled out at the parish level in the coming year, and we strongly encourage your support and 

participation. The apology to the LGBTQ+ community in June was a further step in the Gospel 

work of justice, dignity and inclusion. May Christ continue to be with us as we seek to be 

transformed in His likeness. 

The Gospel of Christ has good news and hard news. The good news is that we have hope in Jesus, 

who is our unchanging rock and our constant salvation in the midst of the storms and tribulations of 

this life. The hard news is that we are called to serve others in Christ’s name. Service is sacrificial. 

Service is rewarding. Service is at the heart of our faith. Thank you so very much for your service to 

the Church and to the glory of God this past year. We are speaking here to all the baptised: our 

hardworking churchwardens, treasurers, musicians, administrators, Sunday School teachers, ACWs, 

outreach workers, altar guilds, sextons, our now-indispensable tech volunteers, and so many more. 

To our beloved clergy, both priests and deacons: you pour your heart and soul into your God-given 

vocation, and we see you. We are grateful beyond words for the super-human effort you have 

tirelessly made to build up the People of God during this pandemic. 

At such a time as this, when we are deeply unsettled, when we would prefer the comfortable to the 

challenging, Christ is calling us to look for the opportunities that are being presented anew: how can 

we partner with a neighbouring church to do more effective and robust ministry? Do we need to 

have all the answers before we set out on the journey of missional exploring and engagement? What 

are we afraid of, and how can the good news of Christ allay our fears and embolden our hearts to 

venture into the unknown? How can we put “the movement of the Spirit” into words, phrases and 

invitations to which new disciples can respond? 

Without a doubt, we are all tired; yet recently, we your bishops are also hearing something new. You 
are beginning to dream again. And we know that when the Church dreams…things change.  
 

“In the last days, God says, I will pour out my Spirit on all people.  
Your children will prophesy, your young will see visions, your elderly will dream dreams.” (Joel 2:28) 

 

May you have a creative, hopeful and inspiring vestry meeting today, as we enter this new year with 

the strength and courage of the One who accompanies us on our journey. We are praying for you all. 

Yours faithfully in Christ Jesus, 

+Andrew Toronto 
 
The Right Rev. Andrew J. Asbil 
Bishop of Toronto 
 
+Riscylla Shaw 
 
The Right Rev. Riscylla Shaw 
Suffragan Bishop of Toronto 
 
+Kevin Robertson 
 
The Right Rev. Kevin Robertson 

  Suffragan Bishop of Toronto   
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St. Paul’s Vestry Meeting: 
February 28, 2021 Minutes 

 

Meeting called to order at 12:37 p.m. by Rev. Fran Kovar. 

1. Opening Prayer by Rev. Fran Kovar, Interim Priest-in-Charge   

 

2. Nomination and election of a Vestry Clerk:   

a. Melanie Foord was nominated   Bruce Hampson moved the nomination.  Seconded by Pam Johnstone.  

Motion carried. 

 

3. Opening Remarks by Rev. Fran Kovar: 

a. At this time we have no further information regarding the choice of a new incumbent beyond the 

information previously shared with the congregation regarding the selection process, which is proceeding. 

b. All information regarding Dee and Jacquie James is considered to be a Personnel issue and as such no 

further comment beyond our previous statement that Dee and Jacquie James have moved on and we wish 

them well.  We are in the process of restructuring St. Paul’s Children’s and Youth Ministry and may consider 

hiring someone on a part-time basis to continue the Children’s and Youth Ministry.   

 

4. That the minutes of Vestry February 23, 2020 be accepted as printed in the Vestry Report.  Motion by Joanne 

Karram.  Seconded by Clare Masson.  No omissions or errors noted.  Motion carried.   

a. Business Arising from 2020 Vestry Minutes.  None. 

 

5. Omnibus Motion.  That this Vestry accepts the reports from the Interim Priest-in-Charge, Wardens and 

Organizations, as printed in the Vestry Report (with the exception of page 34.)  Motion by Clare Masson.  

Seconded by Ivan Hunte.  Carried unanimously.  No questions. 

 

6. Motion concerning the Executive Committee (page 34 of Vestry report): 

a. As per the normal governance structure at St. Paul’s and as in previous years, we need to get yearly approval 

of the motion to suspend the canonical Advisory Board meetings which are standard within the diocese and 

replace this structure with St. Paul’s standard mechanism which includes holding Congregational/Special 

Vestry meetings as required, and the continuation of an Executive Committee comprised of Rector’s Warden 

People’s Warden and three deputy wardens, Treasurer, Secretary and Rector.  The archbishop has no 

concern with the continuation of this governance structure. 

b. Motion that the Advisory Board be suspended for 2021.   Motion by Nancy Logan.  Seconded by Dan 

Reynolds.  Carried unanimously. 

c. Motion that the Executive Committee be comprised of a Rector’s Warden, People’s Warden and three 

deputy wardens, Treasurer, Secretary and Priest-in-charge.  Motion by Paul Scuse.  Seconded by Joanne 

Karram.  Motion carried. 

 

7.  Appointments by Rector/Interim Priest in-Charge: 

a. Rector’s Warden:  Pam Johnstone 

b. Audio/Visual Coordinator:  Bill Bradbury 

c. Altar Guild Directress:  Margaret Wells 

d. Flower Coordinator:  Cynthia Peroff 
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e. Candle Acolyte:  Sharlah Barter

8. Nominations and Election of:

a. People’s Warden:  Bruce Hampson

b. Deputy Wardens:  Ivan Hunte, Kehinde Ladipo, Sophia Levy-Presner

c. Parochial Tribunal Members:  Cassie Williams, Helena Heeson, Lorna Smith

d. Scrutineers:  Clare Masson, Evelyn Hamlet, Cassie Williams

e. Envelope Secretary for St. Paul’s on-the-Hill:  Cassie Williams

f. Food Bank Receipt Secretary:  Marg Jocz

g. Synod Delegates (3):  David Hamilton, Beverley Gibson, Isuru Weerasekera

h. Alternate Delegates to Synod:  David Karram, Steve Masson, Anil Parasar

Motion to confirm the above slate of candidate.  Motion by David Hamilton.  Seconded by David Karram. 

Motion carried.  No other nominations. 

9. Review of Slate of Church Executive and Volunteers.

a. Note that the Bookkeeper is a position appointed by the wardens.  This position is filled by Duane

Ramkissoon.

10. Presentation of the 2021 Narrative Budget

a. Note that, due to COVID-19 the auditor was unable to complete the full 2020 Financial Audit in time for

Vestry.  All information has been provided to the auditor and audited 2020 Financials will be presented at a

Special Vestry at a later time.

b. In response to a question, it was noted that the church is in the black.

c. Further months of CEWS grants from the Canadian government were not included as part of the 2021

budget as technically these funds cannot be claimed until we can show that our revenues had fallen.  We are

applying as an affiliated group through the Diocese monthly as we become eligible.

d. Motion for Vestry to approve the Budget for 2021 (page 35).  Motion by Kehinde Ladipo.  Seconded by

Bruce Hampson.  Motion carried.

11. In Appreciation:

a. Melanie Foord, who has stepped down as deputy warden and executive secretary

b. Bill Bradbury, faithful videographer who makes it possible to livestream services and music

c. Marg Jocz and the Food Bank Volunteers who have kept the Food Bank open throughout the pandemic

d. Michele Broad – our new administrator who has helped keep things running with cheerful, Christian

demeanor

e. Duane Ramkissoon – our new bookkeeper who has come on board during COVID

f. Rev. Fran Kovar – our interim priest-in-charge who continues to lead us during our COVID-lengthened

incumbent search

g. The many volunteers at St. Paul’s who have helped keep the church congregation connected and ensured

that the church was safe for the congregation during our brief autumn opening.

12. New Business or Questions:

a. In response to Nancy Logan’s question, confirmation was given that the Dearly Departed listing was added

to the current version of the Vestry Report which has been posted on the website.   Only those whose

funerals were held at the church were included in this list.  Dearly Departed with funerals pending due to
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COVID are not included in this listing as only those noted in the Parish Funeral Registry are to be included in 

the official Vestry report listing. 

b. Pam Johnstone responded to a question by Clare Masson regarding SS/Youth restructuring and the potential

hiring of a part-time replacement and a question regarding summer grant applications.   Fran, Pam

Johnstone and Sophia Levy-Presner will be helping to restructure and welcome congregational input.

c. Janet Meyers stated that, as indicated in the 2020 minutes, she remains interested in helping increase giving

via PAR, when and if the time is appropriate.  Pam and Fran also mentioned that Etransfers were

increasingly popular.

d. Janet Meyers also mentioned that her project to provide new name tags was put on hold due to COVID.

e. George Toner asked for clarification about hiring an interim SS/Youth minister.  Fran indicated that we are

trying to determine whether to hire someone to physically come into the church or to work virtually due to

COVID, and to potentially harmonize this with the arrival of the new incumbent.

f. Lorna Smith noted that she and Michelle Brochu have retired from both the Children’s Backpacks and

Backpacks for the Homeless programs.  She indicated that any new volunteer taking on the Backpacks for

the Homeless program consider moving the timing of this program back to the autumn when hats, gloves,

warm socks etc. are especially appreciated.

g. Nancy Logan inquired if there was a need for an on-going  “youth perspective” within the Incumbent Search

team, due to the resignation of Edward White.  Fran and Pam indicated that the Bishop was consulted and

they felt that since there was a youth perspective included in the initial search document and parish profile

this should be sufficient.  For this reason the Bishop prefers to keep the Search Committee as is.

h. Marilyn Sinclair noted that Anita Murray has stepped down from the Scholarship Committee.

i. Marilyn Sinclair confirmed to Joanne Karram that any applicants for Scholarships must be currently enrolled

in order to be eligible.

13. Announcement of 2022 Vestry Meeting:  Sunday February 27, 2022 at 12:30 p.m.

14. Motion to Adjourn.  Motion by Nancy Logan.

15. Closing Prayers

a. Rev. Fran Kovar closed with a blessing.

b. Meeting finished at approximately 1:45 p.m.
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St. Paul’s Special Vestry Meeting 
Acceptance of the 2020 Audited Financial Statements 

April 11, 2021 Minutes

Due to the requirement for physical distancing due to COVID-19 the meeting was conducted virtually via Zoom software 

and recorded. 

Vestry meeting called to order at 12:37 p.m. by Rev. Fran Kovar. 

1. Opening Prayer by Rev. Fran Kovar, Interim Priest-in-Charge

2. Opening Remarks by Rev. Fran Kovar:

a. The purpose of this Vestry is to accept the 2020 Audited Financial Statements which were not available at

our regular Vestry meeting of February 28, 2021,

b. Also to elect the auditor for 2021.

3. Nomination and election of a Vestry Clerk:

a. Bruce Hampson was nominated. Pam Johnstone moved the nomination.  Seconded by Dave Hamilton.  No

further nominations. All in favour. Motion carried.

4. Presentation of the Audited Financial Statements:

a. It is moved and seconded that this Vestry accept the Audited Financial Statements for St. Paul’s on-the-Hill

for the period ending December 31, 2020, as circulated and presented. Moved by John Honsberger.

Seconded by Doug Willoughby.

b. Presentation by Dawn Flett & Associates:

Highlights:

i. Audit went well and all required items were provided to the Auditor in timely manner

ii. Standard qualification is included regarding the fact that the church and Food Bank receive

donations in cash and Auditor can only provide an opinion on funds deposited into bank.

iii. Other revenue and expenses were put at the bottom of the statement under Net revenue from

general operations. These amounts are from the Government wage subsidy and Jubilee grants due

to COVID-19 pandemic. This was done so that the net revenue from general operations be reflective

of what it would have been had we not been in a pandemic. It is important that when a budget is

approved it is based on the net revenue and not assuming that the grants will continue.

iv. Costs of personnel salaries were down significantly and once the church is back open after the

pandemic and hiring of support staff it will go up. Weekly giving’s were down. However this

statement is a good statement. We are in a better position at the end of the year than we were at

the beginning.

v. The investments showed a slight increase from 2019 as the huge increase in 2019 was due to the

markets collapsing at the end of 2018 and taking on a huge loss. During 2020 the markets didn’t

know what do to due to the pandemic.

vi. The balance sheet showed a healthy balance with a huge increase and much of this is due to the

generosity of the community at large donating to the Food bank.
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vii. Notes haven’t changed that much this year.

viii. Note 9 is about COVID-19 Impact. This was added this year for the historical value of within our

statements as we move forward the reality is that there are certain things that might happen during

this pandemic which might reflect on our markets, cash flow, etc.  in the coming year(s).

ix. Cleaning up of best practices.

x. Thanked all who have supported those in need during the past year.

c. Questions on the presentation:

i. Pam Johnstone following up with a request from someone who couldn’t attend the meeting today –

Under the balance sheet Woman’s Fellowship & Scholarship was put into one line under Liabilities?

Response: Next year a change will be made to separate these two funds under different lines

“Woman’s Fellowship” and “Scholarship Group”.

d. Having no further questions on the presentation by Dawn Flett. Motion the floor was accepted by all and

carried.

5. Auditor for the fiscal year 2021:

a. It is moved and seconded that this Vestry elect Dawn Flett & Associates Chartered Accountant as auditor for

the Fiscal year 2021. Moved by David Karram. Seconded by Pam Johnstone. No-one opposed. All in favour.

Motion carried.

6. In appreciation:

a. Rev. Fran thanked Dawn for all the work that she has done and all her staff and being available when we call

also being available today to present the audited report.

b. Joanne Karram thanked Marg Jocz for all her had work at the Food bank.

c. Janet Meyers thanked Cassie Williams for taking care of the envelopes and being the gatekeeper and doing a

wonderful job.

7. Other Business:

a. Marg Jocz would like someone from the Executive board of the Food Bank to be invited to the Auditor’s

meeting with the St. Paul`s on-the-Hill executive next year to hear first-hand the recommendations from

Dawn.

b. Comment by Dawn: The Food Bank representative would be involved for the first part of the Auditor’s

Meeting only and then would excuse him/herself from the remainder of the Auditor’s meeting with the St.

Paul’s on-the-Hill Executive Board.

c. Motion made by Marg Jocz that someone from the executive of the Food bank be in attention for the

Auditor`s meeting with the St. Paul`s on-the-Hill executive. Seconded by Doug Willoughby. No-one opposed.

All in favour. Motion carried.

8. Closing Prayer:

a. Said by all: Glory to GOD, whose power, working in us, can do infinitely more than we can ask or imagine.

Glory to GOD from generation to generation in the Church and in CHRIST JESUS for ever and ever. Amen.
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Attendance for this meeting: 32 

Meeting adjourned: 1:09 pm. 

Footnote from the clerk of the Vestry Meeting: 

a. The clerk thanks Steve Masson for recording the meeting as it was helpful in completing the minutes. Also to

Cassie Williams who kept track of all who attended the Zoom meeting. The clerk now acknowledges that the

recordings of the Zoom Vestry meeting of April 11, 2021, and also the Zoom Vestry meeting from February

28, 2021, has been deleted.



A Motion Concerning the Executive Committee & Advisory Board 

In recent years we have replaced the Advisory Board with periodic 
congregational meetings which were open to all members of the parish.  We 
have also increased the number of Churchwardens to allow for better sharing of 
responsibilities.  This has been a more effective & efficient organizational 
structure.  Therefore: 

1. It is moved that the Advisory Board be suspended for 2022.
Congregational meetings, or Special Vestry meetings, will be held as
necessary, which will be open to all members of the parish.

2. It is moved that the Executive Committee be comprised of:

A Rector’s Warden, a People’s Warden and three deputies, the
Bookeeper, a Secretary and the Rector.

Each Churchwarden will have oversight of, and serve as a liaison
with, a designated area of our parish ministry.
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From The Parish Register 

*Due to the unusual circumstances of the

pandemic, we have not listed the attendance as 

it is so staggered. 

Faithful Departed 

Beverley Patricia Gibson 

Eleanor Betty Madill 

John Arthur Chamberlain 

Patricia Mary Bennett 

Dorthy Anetta Yvonne Yeates 

Jean Margaret Harpe 

Lloyd Alexander Jordan 

Marion Phyllis Carter 

Lillian Elizabeth Beckett 

Ruth Humphries 
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Pastoral letter to the parish from the Incumbent: 

When Nehemiah arrived in Jerusalem to rebuild the city walls, the urgency and the enormity of the job 

left him questioning: where to begin?  This, too, was my dilemma as I began ministry at St. Paul’s at the 

end of August 2021, and looked at all the challenges facing us.  

In the Book of Nehemiah, everything began with God and a people bowed in prayer, with their building 

equipment within hands’ reach.  In my opening weeks as your new incumbent, I also discovered a 

prayerful community hard at work. So I began my ministry where God already was, working alongside 

parishioners, clearing the rubble and rebuilding walls. 

Re-Connect, Re-Build, Re-New: August 23-December 2021 

Re-connecting fall 2021: gathering parishioners 

From January until re-opening to in-person worship in the summer, Judy Carpino and her team did 

phenomenal acts of caring through their regular phoning of parishioners, as did Doug Willoughby as staff. 

Many of you took it upon yourself to check on fellow members. 

Re-connecting was also my first priority. So we gathered in the Parking Lot for fellowship through to 

the end of September, and online for weekly Community Conversations, to include parishioners who 

did not feel comfortable gathering in person. I continued monthly Community Conversations as a kind of 

ad hoc “advisory board;” parishioners’ input was invaluable. I met with various groups and people in 

person and online. Reconnecting also happened naturally on Sunday; thankfully we had not a single 

outbreak and remained open for worship until Christmas.  

Reconnecting fall  2021: Administrative projects 

Many of you told me that you wanted better communication. To that end we introduced Constant 

Contact, an e-communication tool that also meets the Privacy act. Another administrative piece has been 

more frequent pastoral letters. Michele Broad and I streamlined the bulletin to include parish news. 

After losing access to the church Facebook page, I created a new one as another tool of connecting 

alongside the church website. 

Rebuilding  fall 2021: Youth and Family Ministries  

Peter and Judy Kirwin continued calling teens during the Interim period, and upon my arrival helped 

reboot the youth group. By late September we had resumed in-person youth group gatherings twice a 

month with anywhere from 5-13 teens at each event.  We reconnected with the youth band, and with Phil 

Jocz’s help their ministry resumed in October. 

Reconnecting with families has been difficult. We solicited feedback from parents: the majority were not 

ready to send their kids to Sunday school until their children were vaccinated. Based on that feedback, as 

a stop-gap solution I started SOS Church: Sundays on Saturday.  Since November, we’ve been meeting 

every Saturday from 11-11:30 am over zoom for intergenerational worship, with an average of 4-6 

children coming out each week, reflecting 7 families with whom we’ve reconnected. We are planning for 
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in-person solutions for March, now that we  have a youth pastor and with vaccines available for children 

for families who want them. 

In terms of Re-building, a big piece of the puzzle was the hire of Matthew Waterman as our new 

associate in early December, 2021. Special thanks go to George Toner, Janet Myers, and Sophia Levy-

Presner for help with that process. What an answer to prayer! 

Renewing worship fall 2021: Re-opening to more Sunday services 

I have been eager to re-open to more services to allow more people to be in church, since our one 

service quickly grew to “capacity”. This fall, a big nut to crack was to ensure we had enough volunteers 

to make that happen. Special thanks to our faithful lay ministry leaders for working hard on recruitment 

and problem solving: Margaret Wells with the altar guild, Carole and Ossie Fowler with our sidespeople, 

Bill Bradbury with tech, and Joanne Karram with our music ministries. While we weren’t able to re-open 

an early 8 am service as planned, we did all the groundwork, so this can easily happen in Lent 2022. It is 

encouraging to see that attendance at both our in-person and at our online services has gone up. 

Live Streaming has become a critical ministry. I am so grateful to Bill Bradbury for his faithful ministry 

to our community. We looked to support Bill this fall including the recruitment of more people who could 

livestream, but Omicron put a temporary pause on the training. 

Renewing discipleship: Baptism, Confirmation, Adult education 

In terms of sacraments, I prepared families for the baptism of 5 children on Sunday.  We reconnected 

with 11 confirmands and “refreshed” their desire for confirmation. Restrictions led to the cancellation of 

that service, but we look forward to a new date soon. 

COVID restrictions required thinking outside the box with Christian Education. We tried Zoom 

teaching events, since this allowed everyone to attend regardless of comfort level with in-person, and with 

no capacity limits. It also meant we were able to secure top-notch speakers from further afield (including 

an author from the United States) who would otherwise not have come to us as speakers. We had three 

events: one biblical, one pastoral, and one on worship. Each were well-attended, with as low as 39 

participants and as high as 56. Our weekly Advent teaching event on Prayer over zoom had more modest 

attendance ranging from 14-29. 

This fall’s preaching series on Nehemiah gave us a framework for thinking about our own rebuilding 

efforts. The accompanying bible study was used by many of our active bible study groups; I am so 

grateful to our bible study leaders who have served tirelessly in this ministry. 

Renewing the Food Bank 

Realizing the size of the Food Bank and its ministry was both exciting and galvanizing as this discovery 

came along with the uncovering of some urgent issues now before us. The scope of the issues were finally 

clarified towards the middle of November and have consumed considerable time and energy since. I am 

thankful to Marg Jocz and the Food Bank volunteers for their work, as well as to the wardens, Food Bank 

members, and auditors for bringing these issues to the fore.  
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Renewing gratitude: Cultivating an attitude of thanks and praise 

As I said in my fall pastoral letter, while Covid and a long time between incumbents has given us reason 

for complaint, I believe that God is calling us as a church to lift our hearts in praise and thanksgiving to 

Him. I am thankful to Bonnie Thomson for gathering praises from our community in the book Praise 

From the People of St. Paul’s-on-the-Hill, as emblem of this call. 

In the spirit of this discipline, I want to finish with words of thanks. I am thankful to the staff at St. Paul’s: 

for the Rev. Doug Willoughby our pastoral associate, Matthew Waterman our associate in youth and 

family ministry, Joanne Karram our music director, and Michele Broad our administrator. I’m particularly 

grateful for Doug’s work in reopening our ministry to nursing homes, to Matthew for his willing attitude 

and hard work, to Joanne for her endless creativity and prayerful approach to music, and to Michele for 

blessing us with her gifts in hospitality and administration. I’m always thankful when Father Paul Scuse 

can preach or celebrate! I am thankful to all those serving in lay leadership in this parish, and members 

who contribute to our common life in various ways: space prevents me from naming you all. 

I want to single out our wardens for special thanks. Pam Johnstone, Bruce Hampson, Ivan Hunte, 

Kehinde Ladipo and Sophia Levy-Presner are one of the hardest working executives I’ve had the pleasure 

to work with. I’ve never seen an executive carry so many responsibilities, between the oversight of a busy 

parish and Food Bank, all coupled with service during a lengthy interim in the middle of a global 

pandemic. I am so thankful for their faithful leadership. Special words of thanks are due to retiring 

wardens Pam Johnstone and Ivan Hunte, who have served for 16 and 7 years respectively. 

Friends, there is no doubt that we’ve got a lot of building ahead of us. Just like the Jewish people in 

Jerusalem all those years ago, we’ve faced setbacks in the 5 months I’ve been here, most notably with the 

appearance of Omicron in mid-December and the suspension of in-person worship for a short season. But 

by God’s grace, the rebuilding is already underway. I thank God for the things He has done and is doing 

in our midst; thanks be to God, our hope and our salvation. 

Yours in Christ, 

Rev. Stephanie Douglas-Bowman 
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Warden’s Report 

Another year and time for another Vestry report from your Wardens. Reflecting on the past 12 
months and looking back as we move from 2021 to 2022, it’s apparent that the coming year, 
much like the year just past, will bring many changes both here on the Hill and within the wider 
community around us.  

We would like to thank our selection committee: Pam Johnstone, Bruce Hampson, Marilyn Sinclair, 

David Karram, and Steve Masson, who each put in many hours of prayerful work selecting our new 

Priest. After 20 months and many contractual extensions, we said good-bye to Fran Kovar as Priest-

in-Charge in August. August 29 we welcomed our new Priest, then the Reverend Stephanie Douglas-

Bowman. Over the past months, Reverend Stephanie has worked hard to re-connect the church. 

There have been many zoom meetings, meetings with parishioners both in-person services and the 

parking lot gatherings. In December, the Diocese name Reverend Stephanie an honourary Canon of 

the Diocese. Also in December we hired Matthew Waterman as our Youth & Family Pastoral 

Associate. Both these individuals bring with them their many gifts to offer to our church. What a 

blessing the LORD has bestowed upon them. 

As parishioners, we have learnt how to use technology to keep us connected with the church. This 

past year we became better Zoomers, using ZOOM to connect with the congregation through the 

many opportunities listed on our web page. Please check the tab “ZOOM” on our website for all the 

links to connect to the opportunities. Our website is updated regularly keeping our congregation 

up-to-date. Our live-streaming services have become a very important tool for our on-line services. 

The Wardens send a huge THANK YOU to Bill Bradbury for his hard work and dedication week by 

week delivering the live-streaming services. We also THANK the rest of the team from sound-board 

to slides and everything else in between for keeping the on-line services going. 

We THANK Marg Jocz and all the volunteers at the Food Bank for their dedication and hard work to 

feed over 14,000 people during the past year. We are so thankful for all the donations that have 

been received; it would not have been possible to feed these people without your kind donations. 

The Food Bank will be going through changes as Marg Jocz retires in August 2022.  

After our February Vestry meeting, we will be saying good-bye to our Rector’s Warden Pam 

Johnstone who has put in over 16 years of service.  Deputy Warden Ivan Hunte will also be retiring 

after 8 years leading the property committee. Both have been key individuals on the team, offering 

long-standing dedicated service to the board. We thank them heartily for all their hard work, 

dedication and commitment as well as their expertise in so many key areas. We wish them God’s 

richest blessings in all their future endeavours and adventures! 

Prayerfully, we look forward to 2022. Several new faces will either be appointed or elected to the 

executive board.  We will be re-opening the church for in person services while continuing live-
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streaming. We hope to re-connect and strengthen our church with the different programs that will 

be offered, re-connecting with the children and youth programs.   

As always, we your wardens welcome YOUR input. We are the management team that you have put 

in place to run your favourite church-on-the-hill and we cannot do it without you. We need every 

part of the body of Christ to fulfill our mandate, so we ask you to prayerfully consider how you can 

be Jesus' hands, feet, heart and body in this world, using the unique talents He has entrusted you 

with. We want St. Paul's an-the-Hill to continue to be as bright a light in Pickering.   

Respectfully, 
Your Wardens 

Pam Johnstone, Rector’s Warden 
Bruce Hampson, People’s Warden 

Kehinde Ladipo, Deputy Warden 
Sophia Levy-Presner, Deputy Warden 

Ivan Hunte, Deputy Warden 
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Rev. Doug Willoughby 

Pastoral Associate 

My dear friends, brothers and sisters, how wonderful to be a part of this Congregation first as a member 

since 1998 then as Part Tine Pastoral Associate since December 1st 2003.  One word I could use to describe 

Saint Paul’s is change.  There has been change every time the senior leadership has changed; we have had 

wonderful Priests in leadership.  As I watched last Sunday’s service I realized many of the faces I looked 

at as Phil sang ‘We are your Church’ are no longer with us.  The year 2020 brought changes that none of 

us have ever seen before.  

It’s true there have also been changes in the way my Ministry has been accomplished. Most of my area of 

Ministry became phone calls, on average twelve to 15 calls per month.  Most of these have not been short 

calls.  I have listened laughed with some, cried with others and prayed with each one.  One person I called 

asked if I could come and take them to the bank (which I did) and then took them for something to eat.  You 

were always glad to hear my voice, share your joys and sorrows and always to have prayer together.  

From January to June I was afforded the privilege of preaching at least once or twice a month for which I 

am very grateful.   

A new area of ministry Canon Stephanie has ask me to take on is the monthly service at Valley Farm 

Retirement Center. This began in November and December and then with the latest shut down we were not 

able to be there in January and are waiting to hear if we will be back next week.  We meet the second 

Tuesday of the month. Thank you to my helpers, Pauline, Janet, George and Alicia and our pianist from St. 

George’s.  This is no small matter!  We need to be there close to an hour before service begins to go through 

the screening process and be tested for Covid.  The first month I was told there would be about 10 present, 

well praise the Lord there were about 24 in attendance and they all wanted to know if we would be back 

next week. In December we filled the room where we meet and they were out the doors in the hallway. Our 

attendance was over 30!  What a privilege to meet with these seniors, some of these folks may not have had 

a visit in weeks and look forward to our time together. 

Yes, there has been a tremendous amount of change, with some hiccups along the way, but oh the joy of 

new opportunities to minister to these precious folks at Valley Farm. Can I encourage you to take hold of 

every new opportunity presented to you? 

I miss those faces that I saw last Sunday who have crossed over to the other side and there are others who 

were not pictured there who have gone before us.  I miss seeing you in person; I miss your wonderful smiles 

and the warmth of your handshakes/hugs.  I miss hearing you sing and your laughter.  I miss P.P. & H. the 

organ and piano together with your voices, the sound of you praying.  I do pray that we will again be able 

to meet together for such a time and that Canon Stephanie will be able to experience our Sunday evening 

P.P. & H. 

Thank you Canon Stephanie for all you have brought to SPOTH, we appreciate you devotion and 

enthusiasm for the work of God, being a co laborer in the harvest. 

Every blessing, 

Doug 
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Audio/Video Technical Ministry Report 

Expenses 

There were no expenses for the year 2021. 

The A/V Ministry 
We started the year 2021 in a lockdown situation, with no congregation present and only a skeleton team 
leading Sunday services. The lockdown was mandated by the Diocese and Province as a measure to curb the 
spread of the COVID-19 Pandemic that had plagued the whole world since March 2020. We also finished the 
year 2021 in lockdown. There was a five and a half month period between July and mid December when the 
congregation was allowed to return for in-person worship, albeit in drastically limited numbers. 

However, every Sunday of the year, a 10:00AM service was conducted and streamed to our virtual 
congregation, via internet host www.youtube.com . In fact, there were a total of sixty-six (66) services 
streamed, which had a total of 12,155 views (or an average of 184 views per service). Complementing the 
regular Sunday services, we streamed programs for five funerals, the annual Women’s Christmas Pageant, 
Maundy Thursday, Good Friday and of course Christmas Day. 

You may join a Sunday E-service by going to the church website and clicking on the link provided on the first 
page, or you could go directly to www.youtube.com and search for the channel St Paul's on-the-Hill TV. If you 
subscribe to the channel, you will receive notification when the next E-service goes live. 

Bill Bradbury 
February 15, 2022 
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Music Ministry Vestry Report for 2021 

It has, once again, been a year of great change for St. Paul’s Music Ministry. Due to the 
continuing Covid 19 pandemic and the need for “social distancing”, we were limited to 1, 2 or 3 
singers on the platform to lead worship.  

Very special thanks are owed to the following people for their unfailing willingness, faithfulness 
and flexibility to make sure that no Sunday lacked worshipful and inspiring music, whether in-
person or on-screen.  

Musicians:  
Catherine Amell, Sharlah Barter, Dave Hamilton, John Honsberger, Phil Jocz, Dave Karram, 
Cynthia Peroff, Susan Scott, Betty Scuse and Bonnie Thomson. 

Audio and Video Expertise and Support:  
the ever skilful and patient Bill Bradbury and capable assistants, Owen Murray and Leroy Jordan. 

We were very delighted, in November, to welcome back our Youth Band under the mentorship 
of Phil Jocz. What a blessing! We hope to hear much more from them in the future. Thank you, 
Canon Stephanie Douglas-Bowman, for initiating this and Phil, for sharing your time and 
experience with our young musicians.   

As the Covid Restrictions loosened in the late fall, the congregation was again able to sing (albeit 
with masks on) and we were blessed to experience the joy of singing together at our Lessons 
and Carols service on Dec. 12 which featured a variety of carols, singers and instrumentalists. 
Sadly, the following week, restrictions again tightened and our Christmas services moved online 
with in-person.  

We look forward to the end of the pandemic and the opportunity to sing and worship together 
in-person again in 2022.  

Yours respectfully,  
Joanne Karram 
Organist/Choir Director 

Yours respectfully,  
Joanne Karram 
Organist/Choir Director 
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 Envelope Secretary’s Report 

For the year 2021, we issued 221 tax receipts to families that made 
donations to support the ministries of St Paul’s. These gifts represent 
approximately $295,000.00 broken down into varying categories.  This 
year’s receipts included donations to specialized ministries such as:  
Scholarship Fund, Altar flowers, Foodbank,  Outreach, Children and 
Youth ministries as well as the important upkeep and operation of our 
 church and the teaching and spreading of the Word. Some 
contributors are people who make regular and ongoing donations 
while others are visitors to the parish or who donate for a specific 
purpose.  

Because of the volume of receiptable items, it is always important to include your complete name for 
every donation made through the church or through e-donations. Every effort is made to ensure 
people get proper credit for any donations made to the parish. If you are fairly new to the parish, 
please include your address as well so we can update our records. This year, we have decided to stop 
issuing full sets of boxed envelopes but instead we have a simple offering envelope where you can 
take a supply home and use at your convenience. A large supply of these envelopes will be available in 
the lobby or by contacting the office.  

There are currently 85 families who utilize our Pre-authorized Remittance System (PAR). This system 
allows monthly offerings to be withdrawn automatically from contributors’ bank accounts thereby 
making this an expedient and easy method of giving on a regular basis. Joining this program is as 
simple as completing an authorization form. We continue to use e-donations and that also has proven 
to be a quick and easy method for making sure your donation reaches the church. Please see the 
church website for directions on using this method. 

Please contact me if you wish to register in or change PAR information, check how much you have 
contributed to date, or need to change any other information.   I would be pleased to answer any of 
your questions or concerns.  I can be reached at 416-660-1093 or by email at 
cassiew@stpaulsonthehill.com  

Respectfully submitted,   

Cassie Williams 

Envelope Secretary 2021 
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Altar Guild Vestry 2021 

 Altar Guild is responsible for setting up the Altar for each service. This involves preparing the 
elements for the Eucharist as well as preparing for other services such as baptisims, funerals, 
weddings and confirmation. Members of the Altar Guild therefore have to be very familiar with 
the items, vessels, linens and altar hangings used during church services. 

 2021 was such a different year for everyone. The Altar Guild had to deal with the changes 
experienced with services which had a congregation, services which were streamed, those 
which were pre-recorded as well as several funerals. 

 We started the year with Rev Fran and then continued with the coming of Canon Stephanie. As 
is normal, requirements change with each church as well as with each Priest but both of our 
priests have been a pleasure to work with. 

Apart from the preparation for services we also have to prepare for special festivals and were 
fortunate to be able to work with our talented flower convenor, Cynthia Peroff to decorate for 
Palm Sunday, Thanksgiving and Christmas. Palm crosses were made by some of our members at 
their homes which was a great help. 

 We were fortunate that some of our Altar Guild members agreed to return to help and we 
hope that when things become a little more stable with the medical situation that more of our 
members will feel comfortable returning to church. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Margaret Wells 
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Property Committee Report 

The Property Committee at St. Paul’s on-the-Hill is responsible for overseeing the care 

and maintenance of the building and grounds.  The committee is comprised of a group 

of dedicated volunteers, who give their time and talents, as needed, to help keep the 

buildings and grounds in a good state of repair.  We strive to be good stewards of the 

resources and trust of the members of the Parish, which allows all to have safe and 

comfortable surroundings for worship, learning and fellowship. 

As we know, everything changed with the arrival of Covid 19.  However, some 

maintenance items still have to be done: e.g. Fire inspection and repair of defects 

found; elevator inspection and maintenance, and roof repair after wind storms etc. 

These items have to be addressed even though the main church is not being used like it 

was, prior to Covid 19.  The space occupied by the daycare is still being used, since the 

daycare re-opened following the initial shutdown. 

The Covid protocols by public health and the diocese 

meant that changes to the way the building was used had 

to be made.  The building capacity was reduced, and 

social distancing requirements meant that there could 

only be about thirty-three people in the worship space per 

service.  There is a requirement to sanitise all surfaces 

after each use.  Signs and guidelines had to be posted 

inside and outside and pews roped off to maintain social 

distancing.  

2022 improvements: As a result of improvements in recent years, the property is in very 

good shape. However, there could be things that pop up unexpectedly, such as burnt- 

out light bulbs. We continue to monitor the buildings and grounds to identify potential 

problems and plan timely repairs before they become major emergencies. One such 

item is spalding paint & plaster in the tower to the balcony. 

Changes in legislation and insurance liability issues mean that we have to use more 

professional labour, licensed and insured, to complete some of our maintenance 

projects.  This drives up the cost of various repairs. Therefore, we are looking for 

volunteers that can help us in any capacity (skilled or unskilled), with our ongoing 

maintenance issues. 

Yours in Christ, 

Ivan Hunte     
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The Prayer Circle 
Led by David Karram and Pam Johnstone 
Vestry Report for 2021 

We are thankful for the privilege of seeing our heavenly Father continuing to work as we bring 
prayer requests to him. This has been especially true within our church family where we are 
most thankful for Rev. Stephanie Douglas-Bowman becoming our new minister and guide. Also, 
we have experienced many varied situations through 2021 with Covid-19 continuing and 
changing; yet we continue to have the goodness of prayer and spending time with our heavenly 
Father!  

A whole new focus on God comes from difficulties we face, and we grow into trusting him at a 
much deeper level. Facing Covid in prayer and asking for protection and healing is a part of 
growing into the relationship God invites us to have with him. And where death comes, we have 
the hope he gives us of being absent from our body and present with our Lord (2 Cor. 5:6-8). His 
resurrection tells us those who accept him also will be resurrected. Remembering this as we 
pray deepens our relationship with the One to whom we pray.  

Death itself has been overcome by our Lord who died. He lives again and welcomes our prayers 
for personal needs, the needs of other, and the needs of our church community in ministry and 

sharing his love. Our trust in him grows as we pray, knowing he 
hears our every prayer and is with us, giving us his guidance. 
Also, trusting him means we rest in him, knowing he knows our 
needs even better than we do.  

As we bring our prayers to our heavenly Father, he becomes 
our peace and comfort, gladly giving us himself. We thank him 
for the privilege of praying with and for you as needs arise. 
Thank you for continuing to provide us with that very special 
privilege! And special thanks go to each member of this team 
for their very great faithfulness.  

If you have requests for which you would like us to pray, please contact: 

David Karram at 905-683-3467 (dksurfer7@gmail.com) or  
Pam Johnstone at 905-683-8726 (pamjohnstone0@gmail.com). 

Full confidentiality is ensured, with only first names being used unless permission is given 
otherwise; and there are some situations where no names will be used.  

In all this, God is at work and we thank him for his great love always being with us. If you would 
like to join the Prayer Circle, you are most welcome to apply by contacting David Karram.  

We deeply appreciate and value your continued prayers for others and for us in this ministry. 

David Karram 
Pam Johnstone 
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ST. PAUL’S-ON-THE-HILL 
Vestry Report for 2021 

Tuesday Morning Men’s Fellowship 

We have had a very special sense of God’s presence and guidance throughout 2021 as our 
Tuesday Morning Men’s Fellowship has met each week. Done through Zoom, time spent 
listening to our heavenly Father has been very meaningful and has allowed contact with people 
further away.  

We began January, 2021, with the books of Colossians and Philemon. This was followed by St. 
Paul’s letters to Timothy and Titus at the beginning of February, and we began the Book of 
Exodus at the end of June. After taking August off for our summer break, we continued Exodus 
until our Christmas Break started just before Christmas. Special thanks go to Ivan Hunte for 
facilitating most of our studies through 2021! 

Enjoying God’s presence is an ongoing part of helping us to grow into the people he wants us to 
be, and it is good to know he enjoys being with us. Our time together from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 
noon seems to go by very quickly! We share needs and pray together, knowing he welcomes us 
and our prayers. This is followed by reading the Scriptures and sharing what God is bringing to 
our attention. We currently are learning from The Lord’s Prayer in Mt. 6, with in-depth focus on 
one line or idea each week, each looked at from many different perspectives. Thanks go to 
George Denny for suggesting and facilitating this. 

Shared leadership of sessions, lively discussions, deep honesty, much laughter, serious 
questions, and thoughtful responses have all continued to be most enjoyable. In all this, there is 
the blessing of inviting God to speak to us and his delight in doing so! Our heavenly Father loves 
communicating with us through our readings. They lead to shared questions, experiences and 
insights.  

We are thankful for the perspectives he gives us in our times together with him. Seeking his 
heart and will is central to what we read and discuss, a solid reminder of the eternal world to 
which our Lord invites us. The many insights shared continue to make our two hours together 
very meaningful and most encouraging.  

As we reflect on all this, we are thankful for the grace of our Lord Jesus Christ, the love of God, 
and the fellowship of the Holy Spirit at work in our sessions. We thank God for each one who 
attends, and you are most welcome if you would like to join us. If you have any questions, 
please feel free to contact: 

David Karram  at 905-683-3467  or  dksurfer7@gmail.com; 
Ivan Hunte at 905-509-5415  or  ivan.hunte@gmail.com; or 
Peter Kirwin    at AAAWimp@gmail.com 

Respectfully Submitted, 

David Karram 
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Women @ St. Paul’s Ministry Vestry Report 2021 

During the months of January to early June of 
2021, as the Covid 19 pandemic continued, 
Women @ St. Paul’s continued to host weekly 
virtual Thursday morning “Coffee Chats” using 
Zoom technology. These were hosted by Judy 
Carpino and offered a variety of spiritual, 

seasonal and general interest topics for learning and discussion. Between 18 and 25 
women attended weekly. We also offered monthly virtual Wednesday evening “Coffee 
Chats” via Zoom. These were hosted by Sharlah Barter and were aimed at women who 
work during the day. The average attendance was between 6 and 9. Both of these 
virtual “get togethers” were well received and seemed to help fill the need to “connect” 
during these times of being unable to meet in-person at church.  

At the end of August, we enjoyed a tour of the beautiful garden of Jill Snape in Oshawa. 
A “Meet in the Park” event, scheduled for mid September, was cancelled due to 
inclement weather.  

We began the fall season of Thursday morning Coffee Chats on October 14. Our new 
priest, Canon Stephanie Douglas-Bowman, was our first speaker. Because in-person 
attendance at Sunday morning church had resumed, we decided to have our Coffee 
Chats bi-weekly instead of weekly until Christmas and to re-evaluate the frequency of 
our meetings in the New Year.  

Our last event of 2021 was our 4th Annual Women’s Christmas Service which, this year, 
was pre-recorded and aired on YouTube Friday, December 10. Our speaker was Sharon 
Hanks and her very encouraging talk included specially chosen worship songs that 
greatly enriched the message. A Readers’ Theatre piece entitled “Covid: the Good, the 
Bad and the Best” and favourite Christmas songs, all featuring women from St. Paul’s, 
completed the service. Our very special thanks and appreciation go to Bill Bradbury who 
very patiently and skilfully put all the parts of the service together to make something 
beautiful for the glory of God.  

We look forward to what God has in store for the women of St. Paul’s in 2022 and thank 
Him for the opportunity of serving Him in this ministry.  

Yours respectfully, 

Joanne Karram, on behalf of the Planning Committee: Sharlah Barter, Janis Caleb, Judy 
Carpino, Helena Heesen,  Joanne Karram, Zina Stewart, Margaret Wells, Marilyn White, 
Cassie Williams 
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Sunday School (SOS)  & Youth Update 

My name is Matthew Waterman, and I am pleased to have joined the ministry team at St. Paul's 
on-the-Hill this past December as Pastoral Associate for Children and Families, working part-
time (25hrs a week). 

Since I started, I have worked with 11 students preparing for confirmation, though the date has 
had to be postponed and is still to be decided. I also participated in a youth Christmas party, 
and with the help of Peter and Judy Kirwin have been working to re-establish regular meetings 
for the youth group for Bible study, prayer, and fun.  

With families I have worked on SOS (Sundays on Saturdays) Church and we started a new three-
month series on the Miracles of Jesus where we are engaging the children through arts. In 
December I worked with a number of families to put together a virtual Christmas pageant, and 
would again like to thank everyone for their cooperation and joy through less-than-ideal 
circumstances. 

We hope to continue our ministry to youth and families knowing they are bearing some unique 
difficulties through this pandemic. Our immediate goals are to facilitate opportunities for youth 
and families to get back into their church home, find ways for the youth to engage with one 
another, especially through music, and to support families in their family devotions through the 
season of the church year. Your prayers are appreciated, and again thanks for welcoming me 
and sharing with me in God's works at our church.  

Blessings,  

Matthew Waterman 
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St. Paul’s on-the-Hill Community Food Bank 
Vestry 2022 

Mission Statement 

St. Paul’s on-the-Hill Community Food Bank’s mission is to provide a nutritional 
supply of food in a welcoming and supportive environment to residents of the City 

of Pickering and Town of Ajax. 

Although the COVID pandemic is still with us and more people are turning to 
the food bank for food assistance, there has been an equivalent increase in 
financial and food donation support from the community.   

In 2021 the food bank assumed responsibility for the Christmas Gift Pro-
gram.  This outreach program is highly valued by the community so when 
Elaine Phipps and Caroline Honsberger retired after many years of service, 
the food bank stepped in to ensure its continuance.  Our thanks to Kim Cahill 
who provided invaluable assistance.  We were able to provide over 200 fam-
ilies with a gift bag which included gift cards, cookies, chocolates, DVDs, 
games and popcorn maker and much more.  The gifts were gratefully re-
ceived by our clients.  

At no time during the pandemic did we have to close our doors but we did 
have to change the way we organize our jobs.  Volunteers now work four 
days a week rather than just when the food bank is open for clients.  The 
changes we made to our work schedules have been so successful we intend 
to continue them when Covid is gone.  Let’s pray that will happen soon.   

Statistics 

• 4200 client visits feeding 14,000 people.
• 15% increase over 2020
• 70% of our clients are Pickering residents, 30% are from Ajax
• 210 Christmas Gift Bags were distributed to food bank families
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• 2021 operating expense - $160,000  (including Christmas)

I will be retiring from my position as Food Bank Director this summer after 
10 great years.  When I took over the responsibility in 2012, the food bank 
was feeding 7800 people a year.  In 2021 we fed over 14,000, an 80% in-
crease.  As the need has increased so has the director’s responsibility and 
work load.  In my opinion, it now exceeds the scope of a volunteer position.  
It is time for me to step aside so the church can establish it as a paid posi-
tion. 

Thank you for the privilege of serving our community for so long. Be sure I 
will miss everyone connected to the food bank and I wish you the best of 
success in the future.  

Thank you to everyone who has supported our food bank with food dona-
tions or financial offerings this year. 

Respectfully submitted 

Margaret Jocz 
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Backpacks for the Homeless 

25:40: "The King will reply, whatever you did for one of the least of these brothers and sisters 
of mine, you did for me". 

We had another year of restrictions in our church services due to Covid 19, so it was difficult to 
promote the Backpacks for Homeless program. However, our parishioners have continued to 
donate to this program. We were able to send cheques to five different organizations to assist 
those most vulnerable. The cheques were sent to be used in whatever way would assist their 
clients. The five organizations were: Cornerstone Community Association, Gate 3:16 Outreach 
Centre, Herizon House, The Salvation Army - Florence Booth House and Durham Youth Services 
(Joanne's House). Herizon House received an additional amount from the Kids Outreach 
Program to be used for children. Thank you letters from these organizations can be found 
posted on the bulletin board in the narthex. Since we are 
not meeting in person at this time, here are a few 
excerpts from these letters.  

Durham Youth Services: "It warms my heart, and greatly 
encourages our staff, that our agency is so regularly 
thought of and supported by our local community. We are 
a dedicated and hardworking team of 
professionals, but we would not be able to provide that 
quality of service without amazing advocates like 
yourselves" 

"It is with heartfelt gratitude that I thank-you, on behalf 
of Herizon House, for the kindness and generosity you 
have extended to us through your monetary donation this 
holiday season. With your contribution we are inspired 
to share hope with those who seek refuge from 
violence, abuse and fear in this community. Because 
you have shared with us, we are able to extend this hope to families at Herizon House. We 
deeply appreciate your thoughtfulness." 

"Our Board of Directors, staff, volunteers and patrons wish to thank you most graciously for 
your kind and generous donation of $200.00 to our Gate 3:16 Outreach Centre." 

Once again, the knitting ladies came through with enough hats and scarves to provide 75 sets 
for the ladies at Florence Booth House. We were also able to provide some hats to Joanne's 
House and a local public school. Thank you Rhona Bradburry and the very dedicated knitting 
ladies for providing such lovely matching sets for those less fortunate. These items help 
homeless women feel seen and valued during one of the most difficult points in their lives. 
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In late November, we put out a call to the congregation for slightly used winter clothing for 
Gate 3:16 clients. Once again St Paul's on-the-Hill stepped up to assist. These items such as 
coats, winter boots, jeans, mitts etc. have been gratefully appreciated by the clients.  

We would like to thank the congregation of St Paul's on-the-Hill for their continuing support of 
the Backpacks for the Homeless Program.  

Respectfully submitted 

Lorna Smith and Eva Boessler 

Coordinators of Backpacks for the Homeless 
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WE EXTEND HEARTIEST CONGRATULATIONS AND BEST WISHES TO OUR 2021 AWARD 
RECIPIENTS! 

We continued with the changes made to safely conduct our Scholarship Program during the Covid-
19 pandemic. Our application and evaluation processes were conducted electronically. 
Thankfully, we were able to meet outdoors for a presentation ceremony on the beautiful sunny 
day of August 15th.  During the celebration, church officials and committee members were able to 
congratulate and interact with award recipients. Lovely pictures of the recipients with their 
plaques and information about their academic achievements are posted on the St. Paul’s on-the-
Hill website for you to review.  

2021 ARCELIA HUNTE MEMORIAL INTERNATIONAL BURSARY 

Project Khmer H.O.P.E. (in memory of Joyce M. Gardner).   
A non-profit organization in Cambodia, equipping over twelve hundred disadvantaged youth 
with vocational skills over the last twenty years, while imparting Christian values. 

2021 ST. PAUL'S on-the-Hill YOUTH ACHIEVEMENT SCHOLARSHIPS 

• Adam Brown

• Erin Howes

• Miles Leslie

• Charlene Rocha

• Addison Walsh

Heartiest congratulations to our recipients! 

The Scholarship Committee would like to show appreciation to those who donated to the fund 
in the last year. Kudos to the professionals on the Independent Selection Committee who 
volunteer their time.  Thanks also to our pastoral team, wardens and members of our 
congregation, who assist in various ways.  

Scholarship applications for the 2022 year, will be available electronically on the SPOTH website 
(www.stpaulsonthehill.com), and will be sent to selected area churches and high schools in 

Ajax/Pickering by February 2022.  Individuals can make donations directly to the St. Paul’s on-
the-Hill Scholarship/ Bursary program at any time, or for special occasions by clearly assigning 
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when donating to the church.  You can also make regular contributions through the PAR 
program.   
Thank you for supporting the future of our young people! 

As we celebrated our fourteenth anniversary in 2021, we were proud of all recipients of the 
local scholarships and international bursaries.  Best wishes to past and current recipients as they 
continue studies, pursue their careers or follow their passion.   

Scripture Reference printed on Bursary Form: "How can I repay the Lord for all his goodness to 
me." Psalm 116:12 

Respectfully submitted by: 
SPOTH YOUTH ACHIEVEMENT SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE, 
Marilyn Sinclair, Marg Jocz 
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ST. PAUL’S ON-THE-HILL  

Proposed LEADERSHIP TEAM 2021 

PARISH EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Rector's Warden Bruce Hampson 905-428-2607 

People's Warden David Hamilton 905-683-7672 

Deputy Warden Kehinde Ladipo 905-239-7211 

Deputy Warden Sophia Levy-Presner 

905-492-0116

Janet Herrera 905 427-7680

Bookkeeper Duane Ramkissoon 

647-274-3290

Exec. Comm. Secretary Bruce Hampson   905-428-2607 

FINANCIAL & PROPERTY & SYNOD REPS. 

Financial Consultant C.I.B.C.

Auditor  Dawn Flett 

Envelope Secretary Cassie Williams 905-666-2261 

Parochial Tribunal  Cassie Williams 905-666-2261 

Helena Heeson 905-683-7672 

Lorna Smith 905-837-0875 

Synod Delegates (3) David Hamilton 905-683-7672 

Steve Masson       905-426-9722 

Isuru Weerasekera 

905-903-5506

Alternate Synod Delegates Beverley Gibson  905-420-9624 

Anil Parasar 905-509-3082 

David Karram 905-683-3467 

Scrutineers  Clare Masson 905-426-9722 

Cassie Williams 905-660-1093 

STEWARDSHIP 

Property & Maintenance T.B.D. 

Hall Rental Co-Ordinator   N/A during Covid 

CHRISTIAN EDUCATION 

Children and Families Matthew Waterman 

Pastoral Associate 

905-839-7909

WORSHIP COMMITTEE 

Worship Comm.     Canon Stephanie 

905-839-7909   ext. #22

Readers/Chalice  As assigned  

Intercessors N/A during Covid 

Altar Guild Margaret Wells 905-839-6499 

Alter Acolyte/Candles Sharlah Barter 905-492-2303 

Flower Coordinator Cynthia Peroff  647-502-9217 

Liturgical Dance  N/A during Covid 

Ushers 7:45 a.m  Fred Gibson 905-428-3164 

9:00 & 11:00 a.m. Ossie/Carole Fowler 

905-430-0239

Servers  N/A during Covid 

Choir Rep. 

9:00 am Worship   Pre-recorded During Covid 

Production Director   Bill Bradbury       905- 839-8924

CHURCH LIFE & OUTREACH 

Website Webmaster Bruce Hampson 905-428-2607 

Bruce Marden I.T. 

Senior's Ministry George & Alicia Toner 

905-420-4443

Food Bank Chair  Marg Jocz 905-686-2863

Scholarship Comm. Marilyn Sinclair 905-686-3617

Marg Jocz 905-686-2863

Women’s Fellowship Joanne Karram 905-683-3467

& Team  

Men’s Fellowship David Karram 905-683-3467 

Christmas Hampers T.B.D. 

Newsletter Editors Melanie Foord 905-420-3106 

Pauline Thomas 905-420-8279 

Men’s Summer Softball N/A during Covid 

Christmas Shoe Boxes T.B.D. 

Backpack for Homeless Lorna Smith 905-837-0875

Eva Boessler 905-831-0575

FLAME Rep David Karram 905-683-3467 

Prayer Ministry Team 

& Anointer  Canon Stephanie 

905-839-7909

Ext #22 

Small Group Ministry 

Prayer Circle David Karram 905-683-3467  

Pam Johnstone     905-683-8726 

SPECIAL EVENTS (Organizers &Volunteers needed) 

Newcomers’ Welcome Committee 

Sophia Levy-Presner 

905-492-0116

We would love a team to step forward with a passion for 

hospitality to rejuvenate some special events. Or perhaps 

you have some new fresh idea’s in fundraising for our 

church on the hill. Covid conditions will apply.  

*******Blank spaces indicate this position remains vacant. 

Please note: 

If you would like to volunteer for a leadership 

position…Please speak to a Warden 

Although a position may be filled at precent we are always 

looking for new people to step forward that could be 

reviewed for understudy in some of these positions.    
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
ST. PAUL'S ON.THE.HILL

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St. Paul's On-The-Hill (the Organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31,2021 and the statements of earnings, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of St. Paul's On-The-Hill as at December
31, 2021 and the results of its operations and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profi t organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As is the case with many charitable organizations, St. Paul's On-The-Hill derives a portion of its income from the general
public in the form of fundraising and Food Bank donations, the completeness of which are not susceptible to complete audit
verification. Accordingly, verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of St. Paul's On-
The-Hill. Therefore, we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to Food Bank, and
fundraising revenue, excess of revenues over expenses, and cash flows from operations for the years ended December 3 I ,

2020 and 2021, cunent assets as at December 31, 2020 and 2021 and net assets as at January I and December 3 I for both the
2020 and 2021 years. Our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended December 3 I , 2021 was modified
accordingly because of the possible effects of this limitation in scope.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian

accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for.such internal control as management detennines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization's ability to continue as a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intendi to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organizalion's financial reporting process.

Auditorts Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance

is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:
,',/3
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

r Identifu and assess the risks of material rnisstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures lesponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and applopriate to provide a basis for or.rr opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fi'aud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional onrissions. rnisrepresentations, or the ovemide ofinternal control.

o Obtain an understanding ofinternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circurnstarlces, but not forthe purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used aud the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates

and related disclosures made by managernellt.

o Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use ofthe going concern basis ofaccounting and based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to everlts or conditions that

may cast significant doubt on the Organization's ability to continue as a going collcern. If we conclude that

a material uncerlainfy exists, we are required to draw attention ir.r our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour auditor's repoft. However, future
events or conditions ll1ay cause the Organization to cease to continue as a going concel'n.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
rnanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communioate with those charged with governance regardillg, amollg other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identifl, during our audit.

Q""^ $l-.\t :. A. s-J*t^=
Chartered Professional Accountant

F'ebruary 10,2022

Ajax, Ontario

Licensed Public Accountant
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ST. PAULIS ON.THE.HILL

STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

r.OR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2021

Revenue
Weekly Givings - General

- Open
- Other

Youth Ministry
Christian Education
Building Fund
Outreach
Diocese grant
Fellowship and Fundraising
Rental Income
Altar Guild
Food Bank
Alpha
Womenrs Fellowship & Scholarship
Memorial
Sound System

Expenses
Personnel
Property
General Operating
Christian Education expenses
Outreach Projects
Worship
Altar Guild expenses
Food Bank expenses
Woments tr'ellowship & Scholarship expenses
Memorial expenses

Net revenue from general operations
Other revenue and expenses

Depreciation of capital assets
Government wage subsidy
Jubilee grants
Investment income
Change in fair value of investments

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

2021

$ 233,804
13,068
8,400

16,gg7
3

11,396
1,590

62,581
5,063

198,736
21425
2,710

580
4.130

561.463

122,772
68,040
77,719

254
5,833
3,241
4,614

177,865
2r710

s80

463.628

97,835

(27,151)
41631

30
15,285

109.296
$ 199.926

2020

$ 231,117
41420

12,697
35,275

1,504
12,236
51,654

41673
50

61,373
1,969

136,891
600

1,471
3,139
5.162

564.130

144,535
74,285
96,568

53,939
5,850
2,317

116,020
lr47l
3.140

498.125

66,005

(27,358)
27,775
18,969
14,298
fi.6941

$Jlt2g
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ST. PAUL'S ON.THE-HILL

STATEMENT OF CHAIIGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2021

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Opening balance
Investment in capital assets
Depreciation

Closing balance

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Opening balance
Excess of revenue over expenses
Investment in capital assets

Closing balance

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS. ALPHA

Opening balance
Excess of revenue over expenses
Closing balance

2021

$ 74,643
10,906

07.151)

$ s8.398

$ 414,059
224,652
(10.906)

$ 627.805'-

$ 6,1.36
2.42s

$_ES6[

2020

$ 102,001

(27.358)

$ 74.643

$ 289,306
124,753

.....-
s 414.059'-

$ 5,536
600

$ 6.136
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ST. PAUL'S ON.THE-HILL

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT DECEMBER 31.2021

ASSETS

Current
Cash

General Fund
Food Bank Fund

Investments (Note 4)
Food Bank Fund term deposits
Rectory Fund
Investment account
Diocese Consolidated Trust

HST receivable - General Fund
HST receivable - Food Bank
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses

Capital Assets (Note 3)

Approved by the Board of Directors:

2021 2020

$ 189,835
368,324

245,890
7,230

585,319
14,577
7,568
5,868
7,699

17.296

1.449.606

s8.398

$ 166,630
266,494

245,079
6,238

4!2,743
12,573
16,924
6,676
9,958
2.29s

1.145.600

74.643

$H0E.004 $L229243.
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ST. PAUL'S ON.THE.HILL

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT DECEMBER 31.2021

LIABILITIES

Current
Accounts payable and accrued charges
Employer taxes payable

Deferred income - Special Funds (Note 5)
Food Bank
Missions
Scholarship
Women's Fellowship
Altar Guild

Deferred income - General Fund
Outreach - Backpacks
Outreach - Hampers
Memorial Fund
Security System
Sound System
Diocese Grant
Rectory maintenance
General Building Fund

Long Term
Deferred revenue - capital contributions (Note 6 )

NET ASSETS

Investment in capital assets
Restricted net assets - Alpha
Unrestricted net assets

2021 2020

$ 21,866
933

670,928
2l,9g6
7,535

361
5,040

1,227

14,ll2
1,651
2,931

s00
60246

796.720

16.520

$ 28,205
1,965

567,710
19,935
6,501

511
5,953

977
7,067

14,692
1,650
2,931

5,254
41.404

704.755

20.650

58,398
9,561

627.805

694.764

s1.s08.004

74,643
6,136

4r4.059

494.838

$W
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ST. PAUL'S ON-THE.HILL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2021

Cash provided by operating activities:

Excess of revenue over expenses
Items not affecting cash:
Depreciation of capital assets
Change in designated cash
Change in accounts receivable
Change in prepaid expenses
Change in accounts payable and accrued charges
Change in deferred income

Cash provided by (used in) investment activities:
Change in investments
Purchase of capital assets

Cash Provided
Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

2021

$J99526

27,151
(101,841)

12,423
(15,001)

(7,367)
95.204

10.569

(176,384)
(10.906)

(187.290)

23,205
166.630

$ 189.835'-

2020

$ e7g

27,358
(207,620)

(7,370)
359

50949
178.892

(2.432)

(55,205)

.....-
(ss.2os)

40,358
126.272

$ 166.630'-
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ST. PAUL'S ON.THE.HILL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31. 2021

1. Purpose of the Organization

The St. Paul's On-The-Hill is a member congregation of The Diocese of Toronto,
Anglican Church of Canada. The purpose of St. Paul's On-The-Hill is to pray, bring
healing, bring community and reach out to all in the name of Jesus through a Holy
Spirit filled, Bible based ministry.

The church is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is therefore
exempt from payment of income taxes.

Significant Accounting Policies 
]

I

These financlal statements have been prepared in atcordance with Canadian

accounting standards for not- for -profit organizations and include the following

significant accounting policies:

(a) RevenueRecognition

Unrestricted donations and gifts are recognized as revenue when cash is
received or receivable. Restricted donations are recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred. Market value fluctuations on
publicly traded equities are recognized as income in the year they occur. All
other income is recorded as earned.

(b) Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation charges for equipment are
calculated on a declining balance basis at a rate of 20"/o. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the
Iease (5 years).

2.
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ST. PAUL'S ON-THE.HILL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER3l.2O2l

2, Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(c) ContributedServices

The activities of the church are dependent upon the voluntary services of many
individuals. Due to the difficulty of determining their fair market value,
donated services are not recognized in these financial statements.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best
estimates as additional information becomes available in the future.Included in
these financial statements are estimates for accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

3. Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated as follows:

Cost

$ 77,1.48
104.355

$ 181.503

Accumulated
Denreciation

$ (46,578)
(76.s27)

$ (123.105)

2021
Net

$ 30,570
27.828

$ s8.398

$ 25,944
48.699

s 74.643

2020
Net

Equipment
Leasehold improvements

(Foodbank)

Total
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ST. PAULIS ON.THE-HILL

NOTES TO F'INAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31. 2021

4, Investments

(a) Term Deposits

Term deposits are recorded at cost and are invested with Canadian Chartered Banks.

Food Bank Fund term deposits earn rates ranging from 0.2001o to l.l0o with maturity
dates ranging from January 2022 to November 2024.

(b) Rectory Fund

Rectory Fund investment consists of 25,87 (2020t 24,94) units of Parish Funds held by the
Diocese of Toronto in trust. They are recorded at market value.

(c) Investment Account

The investment account is comprised of $111,800 (20202 $71002) in cash and $423,418
(20202 $315,298) in equities and is recorded at market value. The equities were
bequeathed to the organization at a cost of $157,179.

(d) Diocese Consolidated Trust

Diocese consolidated trust investment consists of 52.16 (2020: 50.27) units of Parish Funds
held by the Diocese of Toronto in trust. They are recorded at market value.
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ST. PAUL'S ON.THE.HILL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER3l.2O2l

5. SpecialFunds

The current year's activity for the special funds was as follows:

(a) Food Bank Fund
Opening deferred income
Donations
Golf Tournament
Interest
Funds available

Expenses
Depreciation
Christmas Hampers
Groceries
Pickup and delivery
Equipment and supplies
Maintenance and repairs
Office and general
Occupancy
Closing deferred income

(b) Mission Fund
Opening deferred income
Donations

Closing deferred income

$ 20,871
36,689
78,573

1,51,4

1,242
1,417

10,165
48.265

2021

$ 567,710
300,9L5

1.039
869,664

(198.736)

s_6ru.e28

$ 19,935
2.051

$ 21.986

2020

$ 379,998
321,874

2.731
704,603

(136.893)

$161J.1!l

$ 18,015
1.920

$J2JE!
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ST. PAUL'S ON.THE.HILL

NOTES TO F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER3l.2021

5. Special Funds (Contrd)

(c) Women's Fellowship & Scholarship Fund

Opening defered income

Fellowship donations

Scholarship donations and fundraising

F'unds available

Expenses
Fellowship expenses
Scholarship expenses

Closing deferred income

The deferred income represents $71535
(20202 $511) for the fellowship fund.

(d) Altar Guild

Opening deferred income

Donations

Funds available

Expenses
Flowers

Closing deferred income

$ 200
2.510

(2020: $6,501) in

2021

$ 7,012

50

3.544

10,606

2.710

$-7.929

scholarship

2021

$ 5,953

1.560

71513

Q.473)

$_5,!!40

2020

$ 6,364

140

1.979

8,483

1.471

$ 7.012'-

funds and $361

2020

$ 6,053

1.768

7,821

1.868

$ 5.953
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ST. PAULIS ON-THE.HILL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31. 2021

6. Deferred Capital Contributions

The organization received contributions in the amount of $28,680 for the purchase of a new
sound system. The new sound system was purchased in 2019. Accumulated amortization of
$121160 (2020: $81038) has been claimed against these contributions leaving a net balance of
$16,520 (2020: $201650). The deferred contributions are amortized at artte of 20%o using the
declining balance method on an annual basis.

7. Commitments

(a) Rental Lease

The organization has entered into a premises lease arrangement for the Food Bank ending
March 31,2023 at the following monthly rates:

April1",2020 through March 3'1,,2023 $2,988.33 plus applicable taxes

(b) Equipment Lease

The organization has entered into a photocopier operating lease which requires
monthly payments of $305 plus applicable taxes. The lease expires November 22,
2022.

(c) Telephone Lease

The organization has entered into a phone and internet lease which requires
monthly payments of $112.99 plus applicable taxes. The lease expires Ju.ne 1,2024.

(d) Snow Clearing

The organization has entered into a snow clearing contract which requires monthly
payments of $1,945 plus applicable taxes. Salting is charged separately at a cost of
$140 per ton spread. The contract is for the period November 1,2021to March 31,
2022.
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ST. PAUL'S ON-THE.HILL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER3l.2O2l

8. Financiallnstruments

The organization monitors and manages the principal risks associated with financial
instruments. It is exposed to market risk to the extent that it holds equities in its investment
account that are subject to market price fluctuations.

9. COVID.l9IMPACT
On March 11,2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic (the "pandemic") as
a result of the spread of COVID-l9. Since that time, the pandemic has severely impacted local
economies around the globe. In many countries, including Canada, organizations were forced to
cease or limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain the spread
of COVID-l9, including travel bans, quarantines, physical distancing, and closures of nonessential
services have triggered significant disruptions to organizations worldwide, resulting in a widespread
economic slowdown. Governments and central banks have responded with monetary and fiscal
interventions in an attempt to stabilize economic conditions.

In response to local government restrictions, the Organization was not able to continue with certain
planned events, while working to support its members and the general business community through
the periods of government restrictions. As a result of the pandemic, the Organization has received
federal wage subsidies in order to minimize the financial impact of the pandemic on its employees.
The Organizttion recognized total government subsidies of $4,631, which have been recognized in the
statement of operations during 2021. As at December 31,202115622 of government assistance was
included in accounts receivable.
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ST. PAUL'S ON-THE-HILL ANGLICAN CHURCH, PICKERING 
2022 BUDGET 

2022 BUDGET SUMMARY 

Change ($) % Change 

2022 Budget 
% of 
Total 2021 Budget 

 '22 Budget 
vs. 

 '21 Budget 

 '22 Budget 
vs. 

'21 Budget 

ORDINARY INCOME/EXPENSES 

INCOME 

WEEKLY GIVINGS           297,000  78%        251,425  $45,575 18.1% 

CHRISTIAN ED 8,000  2%            5,430  $2,570 47.3% 

BUILDING FUND            10,000  3%          12,236  -$2,236 -18.3% 

SPECIAL FUNDS 

ALTAR GUILD -   0% 105  -$105 -100.0% 

FOOD BANK -   0% -   $0 0.0% 

WOMEN'S FELLOWSHIP -   0% 100  -$100 -100.0% 

SCHOLARSHIP FUND -   0% -   $0 

TOTAL-SPECIAL FUNDS -   -   205  -$205 

OUTREACH PROJECTS 2,000  1% 800  $1,200 150.0% 

DIOCESE -   0% -   $0 0.0% 

FELLOWSHIP/FUNDRAISING -   0% -   $0 0.0% 

RENTAL            61,781  16%          61,577  $204 0.3% 

Total Income from OPERATIONS           378,781  100%        331,673  $47,108 14% 

OTHER INCOME -   -   -   $0 0% 

Total Income from ALL SOURCES           378,781  100%        331,673  $47,108 14% 

EXPENSES 

PERSONNEL CLERGY           200,186  53%        161,267  $38,919 24.1% 

PROPERTY COSTS            71,038  19%          72,934  -$1,896 -2.6% 

ADMINISTRATION            26,728  7%          28,123  -$1,395 -5.0% 

CHRISTIAN ED 5,817  2%            7,717  -$1,900 -24.6% 

CHURCH LIFE (Allotment/Synod)             56,852  15%          56,852  $0 0.0% 

SPECIAL FUNDS 

ALTAR GUILD -   0% 105  -$105 -100.0% 

FOOD BANK -   0% -   $0 0.0% 

WOMEN'S FELLOWSHIP -   0% 100  -$100 -100.0% 

SCHOLARSHIP FUND -   0% -   $0 0% 

TOTAL-SPECIAL FUNDS -   0% 205  -$205 -100% 

OUTREACH PROJECTS 5,960  2% 800  $5,160 645.0% 

FUNDRASING EXPENSES -   0% -   $0 0.0% 

WORSHIP            12,200  3%            3,775  $8,425 223.2% 

TOTAL EXPENSE from Operations           378,781  100%        331,673  $47,108 14% 

Net Income from OPERATIONS 0  0% - 0 $0 0% 

Other INCOME/EXPENSE -   0% -   $0 0% 

TOTAL NET INCOME 0  - 0 $0 -
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St. Paul’s Food Bank 
Vestry 2022 

Faithfully exploring an effective and compassionate 
road forward for St. Paul’s Food Bank. 

This booklet is a guide to the upcoming discussions and decisions around St. Paul’s 
Food Bank. You will find a brief history of the ministry; a behind-the-scenes look at its 
operation; snapshots of the current challenges; glimpses into the lives of some of those 
we serve; and a proposed strategic solution for the way ahead.  

We have many new clients who are also new to the country. They are fleeing bad 
situations, such as the Taliban in Afghanistan. These clients need help in many 
ways. We are one stop on their new journey, and we are willing to help them.”  

– a Food Bank volunteer

"Then the King will say to those on his right, 'Come, you who are blessed by my 
Father; take your inheritance, the kingdom prepared for you since the creation of 
the world. For I was hungry and you gave me something to eat, I was thirsty and 
you gave me something to drink, I was a stranger and you invited me in, I needed 
clothes and you clothed me, I was sick and you looked after me, I was in prison 
and you came to visit me.'  - Jesus (Matthew 25:34ff) 
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Inside the world of St. Paul’s Food Bank 
● Where is St Paul’s Food Bank (SPOTH FOOD BANK)? SPOTH FOOD BANK rents a

3100 sq ft space at Parkway Storage (1537 Pickering Parkway). The Food Bank has
moved three times since its inception in 1990, where it began out of the second-floor
storage cupboard of St. Paul’s on-the-Hill church. The location may change again if
additional space is required in the future.

● When can people access the Food
Bank? Clientele can visit Tuesdays and
Fridays, 10:00am – 12:00pm. Volunteers
work throughout the week to prepare the
supplies and the space.

● Who do we serve?  Anyone who needs
us! We see clients of all ages, genders,
race and creeds who face food insecurity
in Pickering and Ajax. Clients register the
first time they visit. SPOTH FOOD BANK
is the only food bank in Pickering, an
area with a population of over 91,000
people.

• Does the Food Bank operate on its own? SPOTH FOOD BANK belongs to Feed the
Need Durham, a regional distribution hub for emergency food providers in our
community, with the goal of alleviating hunger in our community through compassionate
and collective action. Our membership in Feed the Need gives us access to Link to
Feed, a software designed for food banks.

• How large is the Food Bank?  From a small church pantry operated from a closet on
the second floor of our church, SPOTH FOOD BANK has grown to be one of the largest
food banks in Durham region.

• Who oversees this ministry? St. Paul’s Food Bank has its own advisory committee
made up of Food Bank volunteers who know the ministry best. Legal responsibility and
governance authority belongs to the corporation of St. Paul’s-on-the-Hill (i.e., the
wardens and the incumbent). This responsibility covers tasks from volunteer
management to budgets and health and safety regulations. St. Paul’s Food Bank falls
under the church’s charitable number.

● Who financially supports the ministry of the Food Bank? A variety of sources.
Financial donations come from St. Paul’s and other churches, as well as secular
agencies and donors from the community. Donations from St. Paul’s Church
represented less than 4% of the total annual financial gifts in 2021.

What is food insecurity? 

Food insecurity, also called household food insecurity, 
is not having enough money to buy food. Individuals 
and families living on low incomes struggle to pay the 
rent, other basic living costs (such as utilities, phone, 
childcare, clothing, medication, transportation) AND 
food. –Ontario Dieticians in Public Health (odph.ca) 

13% of households in Ontario are food insecure, which 
is 1,700,000 people living in Ontario. (odph.ca) 
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● Who are the volunteers?  Historically, the ministry was led by 6-12 volunteers from St.
Paul’s. Today, there are more than 40 volunteers from all over the community. Currently,
nine volunteers attend St. Paul’s (22.5% of total volunteers).

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Going deeper behind the scenes at St Paul’s Food Bank 

• One volunteer Food Manager/Director, donating up to 35 hours a week of their time, currently
oversees all Food Bank operations.

• Together, 40 volunteers donate 12,000 hours of their time each year.

• Since 2017, financial donations have fluctuated. A major annual fundraiser (a golf
tournament) stopped in 2017, but donations have increased in the last two years:

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

113,273 88,753 77,641 318,156 283,579 

• During Covid we have seen donations of actual food decrease, but financial support increase,
along with the need for storage space for food purchased from grocery stores.

• The economic challenges of the pandemic have led to steady growth in community members
seeking help at the Food Bank.

Profile of a friend: “Jennie was a single parent of two children, ages 3 and 7. Before her youngest child’s first 
birthday, the doctors confirmed her worst fear. Her child was diagnosed with cancer. The family’s life started to 
spiral. Visits to doctors, short and long-term hospital stays, all took its toll.  Jennie, who up to this point, was 
financially able to provide for herself and her children, suddenly found that trying to work in the 9 to 5 world 
when you need to be there for your sick child created real conflict. Jennie had to leave her job and apply for 
financial support. At this point Jennie applied to the Food Bank, grateful that her family’s food needs would be 
met as she struggled to be there for her children through these incredibly difficult times.” 
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Backgrounder to the Motions at Vestry

As we search for the best way forward for this essential ministry, what exactly 
are we being asked to vote on at Vestry 2022? 

There is one main motion being brought to Vestry: 

● Moved to approve the 2022 St. Paul’s Food Bank budget which designates reserve
funds according to CRA guidelines and includes the hire of a replacement for retiring
volunteer Food Bank Manager/Director, Marg Jocz and the hire of a part-time
bookkeeper.

The other two motions are not required according to canons, but we are including them for the 
sake of transparency and clear communication:  

“Life and circumstances can change in an instant, loss of employment, mental health struggles or the death of a 
partner can drastically impact our ability to earn an income to support our need for shelter, food and community. 
When I started volunteering with the SPOTH FOOD BANK, I was looking for a way to keep myself busy during 
the pandemic. I did not truly understand the full extent of the very real need for food and support in Pickering. I 
was immediately affected by the way my fellow volunteers come together weekly to provide a service that allows 
its clients to access heathy meal options with compassion and dignity.” – Bev, a volunteer at SPOTH FOOD 
BANK 
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● Moved to create a Finance and Audit Committee for 2022, composed of warden Kehinde
Ladipo, Clare Masson, Bruce Neville, and on an as-needed basis, the church
bookkeeper Duane Ramkissoon and the bookkeeper of the St. Paul’s Food Bank.
Members will go through appropriate screening for high-risk ministry.

● Moved to schedule two congregational meetings regarding updates with the St. Paul’s
Food Bank, the first no later than June 25, 2022, and the second in the fall of 2022. If
there are matters requiring Vestry approval, these meetings will be in the form of Special
Vestries.

As we work to strengthen the Food Bank, what are the issues this enhanced 
budget seek to address? 

Our goal is to serve our clients better and help reduce food insecurity in our community while 
being in full compliance with regulations of the Canada Revenue Agency and the canons (laws) 
of the Diocese relating to ministries such as this one.  

Together, we can find a practical solution that will address the needs of a growing food bank, 
sustain our volunteers, strengthen our leadership model and meet government and diocesan 
requirements. We are confident.  

The budget addresses four key issues related to managing and strengthening the Food Bank in 
2022.

● Diocesan canons: The Food Bank and its finances and operations is the legal
responsibility of the church corporation. The Diocese has indicated there are governance
issues we must address immediately. Our warden team has shrunk to its lowest size in
recent memory, but the responsibilities have only increased in terms of the challenges of
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rebuilding parish ministry in COVID. The governance issues are complex, and the need 
is clear to support our wardens and our Food Bank with reliable and proven expertise. 

● Retirement of Manager/Director and Growth of Food Bank and Volunteer
Shortage:  SPOTH FOOD BANK is a large operation. No other food banks that we can
find of its size are volunteer led. The complexity of the Food Bank has moved beyond
volunteerism and for it to succeed in the future and meet the needs of its clients, the
Food Bank cannot be sustained by volunteers alone.

● Federal laws governing not-for-profit: Church wardens are required to bring to Vestry
budgets that follow not-for-profit guidelines. The budget we are bringing forward
maintains our compliance with the CRA while also making appropriate use of reserve
funds for the hire of needed food bank staff. The reserve funds need to be used this
year. The hire of a bookkeeper will facilitate the smooth running of SPOTH FOOD BANK
and help ensure that we remain in compliance with all reporting requirements in the
future.

Profile of a friend: “Eva was sent to the Food Bank after tragedy struck her family. The apartment she was 
living in with her five children caught on fire. Eva and her children barely made their way to safety, but there 
was no time to save any personal effects. Eva found herself in a place where she had to start over from the 
ashes. Any little extra income Eva had was needed to acquire the simplest of household and personal 
needs, leaving little left for food. Eva told us she knew she could depend on the Food Bank to help her 
navigate her way through, as she started to rebuild her life, gave her the incentive she needed to get up 
each day and slowly move forward.” 
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How do we make these kinds of decisions as a church?
Good news! We have all we need to create a workable solution that will strengthen the Food 
Bank. Church wardens and the incumbent form church corporation/executive and are tasked by 
Diocesan canons with the responsibility and oversight of temporal matters of the Church. 
According to subsection 2 and 18 of canon 14, they may only bring to Vestry solutions that are 
in line with both secular law as well as synodical constitution. Church wardens are guided 
internally by parish committees, relevant lay leadership and congregational meetings. Church 
wardens are guided externally by subject matter experts. Below, you will find the process 
churchwardens followed that has brought us to Vestry 2022 and our proposed solutions.  
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Why now?
The time is exactly right to make these strategic and necessary changes. Although it feels 
urgent, this situation has evolved over years and reached the point of needing immediate action 
during Covid and when interim leadership was in place. With the arrival of our own rector Canon 
Stephanie in August, we now can address this situation with a workable and well-thought-out 
solution. Our church wardens have managed this “could-be-a-crisis” situation effectively up to 
this point, and now we have a strategy to address it.   

The Strategic Shift from Volunteer to Staff Positions 
Why hire a bookkeeper? 
Currently, volunteers maintain the Food Bank books. The growth of the ministry and the 
changing nature of the donations, from mostly food to slightly less food and lots of cash, have 
significantly increased the workload of the bookkeeping. There is more handling of funds, an 
increased need for proper recording of cash donations as recommended by Auditor, 
bookkeeping, tracking of HST/GST and the issuing of tax receipts.  

Reduced food item donations, particularly in the summertime, requires the Food Bank to buy 
food with the money donations, which also increases the bookkeeping and need to strictly follow 
the Auditor’s recommended guidelines.  

Increasing cash donations means increasing tax-receipting requirements that currently fall to a 
warden or parish treasurer. Kehinde Ladipo, one of our deputy wardens charged with the role of 
treasurer, already works long hours managing the parish finances, along with her own 
demanding career.   

As a not-for-profit ministry, there are CRA compliance issues that need to be addressed. How 
we conduct our operations matters and requires expert accounting services that can guide us in 
these issues as well as the need for compliance with Diocesan requirements.  

The wardens request Vestry’s support to seek the necessary expertise for the full 
functioning and thriving of the Food Bank and to establish appropriate budgets for these 

Profile of a friend: “The first time I met Sylvia at the Food Bank, she threw her arms around 
my neck and burst into tears. It was the Christmas season and Sylvia told me how, in her 
70’s, she found herself the sole provider for two grandchildren. Her daughter had recently 
passed after a long illness. As a senior, she was living on basic CPP and OAS; barely 
enough to support herself. She thanked me for everything the Food Bank has done to help 
her make her way; stressing how without the Food Bank, none of this would be possible.” 
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resources that will help our ministry stay fully complaint with legal requirements, while 
serving our clients in the most effective and long-term way.  

Why hire a replacement for Marg? 
We are so thankful to Marg and the incredible work she has done over the years. Her generosity 
in giving her time has been simply amazing and deeply inspiring.  

Now, we are at a crossroads. The role of the Manager/Coordinator/Administrator/Director of the 
Food Bank has evolved significantly since Marg took it over more than 10 years ago. The 
number of our friends who need food from the Food Bank has more than doubled. More 
supplies and volunteers are needed for tasks such as receiving donations, sorting the food, 
checking expiry dates, packing the bags and boxes of food, meeting and greeting the people as 
they arrive, registering clients with our Food Bank and distributing the food. 

The need for food has increased, resulting in the need to establish food donation drop boxes at 
the large grocery stores in Pickering and Ajax. The Food Bank Manager/Coordinator/Director: 

1. Establishes relationships with the owners of the stores, encourages them to do food
drives, and recruits volunteers (Food Bank “Angels”) to pick up the donations from the
stores and deliver them to the Food Bank on a regular basis (weekly or twice a week).

2. Establishes relationships with local Service Clubs, Associations, School Boards,
apartment housing units, etc., encouraging them to do periodic food drives to help.

3. Establishes relationships with local businesses and encourages them to make donations
(financial and food) to the Food Bank.

The donations of food and money increased significantly, resulting in the need for more 
bookkeeping and tax receipts, and importantly, written thank you cards for the donations. 

The area required to operate the Food Bank doubled to about 3,100 square feet, requiring more 
volunteers to be recruited, organized, trained and scheduled. The food drives are so successful 
that at times the Food Bank needs two or three additional temporary storage units to store the 
food. Imagine the amount of food that fills a storage unit 10 feet wide, 10 feet high and 20 or 30 
feet long! Now imagine two or three additional storage units, in addition to the three regular 
storage units included in the 3,100 square foot food bank, all filled with food. We estimate that 
the food donations alone are worth several hundred thousand dollars per year. 

The Manager/Coordinator/Administrator/Director of the Food Bank is like the Chief Executive 
Officer of a company managing a large business with 40 employees. They are the visionary of 
the organization, shepherding this ministry in its mission to care for the people it serves.  

pg 55



It is too much to ask of a volunteer. This is a full-time job. It is time to take the next steps and 
hire a full time Manager/Coordinator/Administrator/Director. This is an exciting and pivotal 
moment in the life of our church and this flagship ministry.  

How will we pay for these positions? 
First, we are not alone. Other food banks have dealt with these same issues and stood at this 
same juncture between volunteer and paid, and between the past and the future. Most food 
banks of our size have paid staff overseeing operations. There is precedent and a path forged 
by others who went before us. There are even grants available to assist with the funding of 
these positions, since Food Banks are considered an essential service. 

Currently, we are accepting yet not actively soliciting for these expenditures. We have 
approximately $600,000 in donations in reserve, thanks to the increase in donations we 
experienced during COVID. Those reserves are for the ministry of the Food Bank, including its 
operations (paying for storage, equipment, staffing). According to CRA guidelines, the Food 
Bank is allowed to keep one year’s operating funds in reserve. This is good news and important 
for moving forward.  

To keep the doors of the Food Bank open, we need to staff the Food Bank appropriately for its 
size. The Food Bank cash reserves should be able to get us through the next two critical years 
as we work to further secure the future of the Food Bank. We will work to identify additional 
revenue streams for these positions, which may include grants and fundraising. 

We are bringing to Vestry a careful Food Bank budget that designates the reserve funds 
appropriately for the ministry, honouring donor intent, following CRA guidelines and laying the 
foundation for a strong Food Bank future for the sake of the families who depend on us.  

Can we still be St. Paul’s ministry if we hire someone?
The heart of our ministry will never change. Compelled by the love of Christ and his 
commandments, the Food Bank feeds the hungry in our community. Any employees will report 
directly to the church corporation, in the same way as our pastoral associates, our organist and 
our secretary.   

While Canadian law forbids us from placing religion as a requirement, we can state as an 
expectation that the employee will be able to work within the vision and values of the oversight 
body – which is the church. We believe the right gifted and skilled person is out there, willing to 
serve our ministry and usher it into this new era.  
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What are the nitty gritty financial details?
We have estimated the budget for these two positions at approximately $45,000 for 2022. 
These amounts are not only salaries, but also include employer payroll expenses. 

The specific amount of the salaries has not yet been established. We are currently researching 
to draft job descriptions and industry salary ranges, and will hire according to those standards. 
Initially, these will be contract positions. The Food Bank has sufficient funds to pay the salaries 
from ongoing donations, which have been growing in recent years. This is good news.  

Appendix A includes a summary 2022 budget for the Food Bank, along with 2021 actuals. 

Who will oversee the new hires, and manage their pay? 
Because the Food Bank is a ministry of St. Paul’s Church, by the constitution and canons of the 
Diocese, these new hires must report to the churchwardens, as do every staff member of St. 
Paul’s Church. Wardens will continue to be involved in monthly meetings with the Food Bank 
Advisory Committee, and the new hires will need to participate in Staff Meetings at the church.  

We will continue to keep Food Bank and church operating funds separate, to clearly honour all 
donor wishes.  

We will end with the profile of a friend who no longer needs the Food Bank, and now 
supports it: “I met Hilda when she introduced herself to me as she handed me a cheque made out 
to the Food Bank. She had just graduated from her college course and was fulfilling a promise she 
made to herself; that once she no longer needed the Food Bank, she would become a regular 
donor to give back in thanksgiving for everything given to her. She explained how she was the 
mother of two children who, finding herself a single parent, had found her life spiraling downward. 
As the sole provider for all her family’s needs, she determined that she couldn’t do it on her limited 
income, so she turned to the Food Bank to ensure she had her family’s basic food needs met. Hilda 
described how she worked at her minimal salaried job all day, then spent nights and weekends 
attending Durham College trying to upgrade her education so that she could improve her income 
potential. Her goal was to finally be able to pay for her family’s needs without having to utilize 
support services like the Food Bank. That was five years ago, and she has continued to donate and 
stresses that she will never forget what the Food Bank meant to her and her family in their greatest 
time of need.”
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Appendix A - 2022 Food Bank Budget 
2022 Budget for St. Paul's Food Bank 

Category 
Actual Budget 
2021 2022 

Income PayPal Donations $72,698 $60,000 
Christmas Donations** $46,729 $40,000 
Other Donations $164,152 $150,000 
Other Income $1,271 $1,200 

Total Income $284,850 $251,200 
**2021 Actual includes $7,067 transferred from St.Paul’s 

Expense Office Supplies $406 $500 
Professional Fees $2,260 $14,000 
Telephone, Internet $1,183 $1,100 
Business Supplies $3,981 $9,000 
General Operations Other $20,000 

Total General Operations $7,830 $44,600 

Rent $45,632 $60,000 
Utilities $3,069 $3,800 
Renovations/Improvements $25,000 

Total Occupancy $48,700 $88,800 

Groceries $66,523 $130,000 
Non-Food Purchase $315 $700 

Total Groceries $66,838 $130,700 

Bank Charges $153 $200 
Pick Up and Delivery $1,514 $31,500 
Purchases $929 $2,000 
Maintenance $3,232 $4,000 
Christmas $46,407 $55,000 

Salaries $45,000 

Total Expense $175,602 $401,800 
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Interim Priest-In-Charge: The Rev. Fran Kovar (till Sept.2021)

Incumbent       : Canon Stephanie Douglas-Bowman

Pastoral Assistants: The Rev. Doug Willoughby

Honorary Associate: The Rev. Paul Scuse

Parish Administrator:  Michele Broad

Churchwardens:

Rector’s: Pam Johnstone,

People’s: Bruce Hampson

Deputy Wardens: Ivan Hunte, Kehinde Ladipo, 

Franklin Wyke, 

Sophia Levy-Presner

Bookkeeper: Duanne Ramkissoon


